

ISSUE #5

M

THOMPSONS

MARCH 2024

ISLAND

PARIME LACVS



Message from the Editorial Team

We are delighted to announce the release of AMaThing 5.0 on the International Day of Mathematics, observed annually on March 14th. As we celebrate this occasion, it's important to highlight the significant role mathematics plays in our interconnected world. In today's era, mathematics extends far beyond its traditional boundaries, permeating various aspects of our lives and offering solutions to complex problems.

It is our responsibility to delve into the intricacies of nature, crafting near-accurate mathematical models to reduce chaos and bring about harmony. Moreover, researchers should strive to communicate their findings in accessible terms and embrace interdisciplinary collaboration to address global challenges collectively.

This issue of AMaThing has continued to raise standards since its predecessor. The intention of disseminating science to the public, which is labelled Science Communication, is our main motto in producing AMaThing, and it stands for what we have intended. We are confident that the public reading this issue might understand mathematics from a new perspective that is not yet present.

We express our sincere gratitude to the dedicated team whose efforts have made this achievement possible. Let us continue on this journey, leveraging the power of mathematics to create a better future for generations to come.

Happy reading!

On behalf of the Editorial Team, 2023-24.



Contents

W	elcome Message	i
1	Why Are Mathematicians Obsessed With Prime Numbers?	1
2	Data: Oil of the Digital Age	3
3	Inefficiency of Rulers	7
4	Exploring the Depth of Graph Theory	9
5	The Circle: 7 different perspectives	11
6	Functional Analysis and its Unique Role in Understanding Deep Learning, Machine Learning, and Neural Networks	15
7	Infinity and Beyond	19
8	Applications of Matrices in Real Life	21
9	Computational Intelligence and MathematicsDr. JAYESH M. DHODIYA	23
10	Mathematics in Business Management	25
11	ARIMA Models for Time Series Forecasting	29
12	The Power of Queueing Theory in Everyday Life	31
Ed	litorial Team	32



Why Are Mathematicians Obsessed With Prime Numbers?

Gouri Chirag

Prime numbers have piqued human's interest throughout the history. The questions dealing about prime numbers are too difficult to work even the basic question on the elements containing in it. The distribution of prime numbers among natural numbers is among the most intriguing features. When viewed on a small scale, prime numbers appear to be random, but still, there is a pattern which requires attention on a bigger scale. In this article, we will explore the role of these unique mathematical entities, their play in the world of numbers and discover the secret surrounding mathematicians' love with prime numbers.

What Are Prime Numbers?

First, it is important to define prime numbers so that we may appreciate the appeal. Any natural number greater than one with only two positive divisors, itself and one, has been termed as prime numbers. In another perspective, a prime number can only be divided without creating a remainder by 1 and itself. Examples include, 2, 3, 5, \cdots etc.

Some History

Since ancient times, prime numbers have drawn public attention and even been connected to the paranormal activities viz. magic. In the modern period, there are still people who try to give prime number's magical properties. Carl Sagan, a well-known astronomer and science writer, spoke about how aliens, who belong to a culture similar to our own, were trying to communicate with humans by sending messages in the form of prime numbers in his 1985 book "Contact" [3]. The idea that signals based on prime numbers might serve as the foundation for communication with extraterrestrial cultures continues to captivate a lot of people. It is widely believed that Pythagoras' time was when prime numbers first attracted significant attention. The Greek mathematician Pythagoras lived in antiquity. The Pythagoreans, who were divided between mystics and scientists, were his pupils and existed in the sixth century BC. They left no written record behind, and the little information we have about them comes from oral traditions. Alexandria (modern-day Egypt) was the center of Greek culture three centuries later, in the third century BC. Euclid, who lived in Alexandria during Ptolemy I's time, is perhaps most familiar to you through Euclidean geometry. For over two millennia, euclidean geometry has been taught in classrooms. However, Euclid had a mathematical interest as well. The first-ever mathematical proof of the infinitely many prime numbers theorem can be found in Proposition 20 of the ninth book of his work "Elements" [2].

The Sieve of Eratosthenes

Which technique do we employ to find the prime numbers smaller than 100? We usually determine using the divisibility of numbers on an individual basis which is time-consuming. A few decades after Euclid lived one of the greatest academics of the Hellenistic era, Eratosthenes has served as the head librarian of the Library of Alexandria, the first library in recorded history as well as the biggest and oldest library in antiquity. In addition to his passion for arithmetic, astronomy, music, and geography, he was the first to determine the circumference of the globe with an accuracy which was remarkable finding during his times. Among other things, he devised a clever way to find all the prime numbers up to a given value. The concept of sieving or sifting the composite numbers, also referred to as the Sieve of Eratosthenes, is the foundation of this method.

Frequency of Prime Numbers

Prime number frequency deals with the amount of prime numbers occurring in a random intervals e.g., prime numbers between 1,000,000 and 1,001,000 (one million plus one thousand) as between 1,000,000,000 and 1,000,001,000 (one billion plus one thousand). The question of possibility of calculating prime numbers falling between one thousand and one trillion shouldn't be ruled out without proper discussion.

Based on calculations, prime numbers become increasingly scarce as the numbers increase in order. However, the question of formulating a precise theorem to capture their rarity has interested many mathematicians. In 1793, at the age of sixteen, the renowned mathematician Carl Friedrich Gauss first proposed this theorem as a conjecture. More tools were created to deal with it by the nineteenth-century mathematician Bernhard Riemann, who had the greatest influence on the study of prime numbers in contemporary times. However, a formal proof of the theorem was not provided until 1896, which was a century later after being initially proposed. Remarkably, the Belgian de la Vallée-Poussin and the Frenchman Jacques Hadamard produced two separate proofs in the same year. Interestingly, both males were born around the time that Riemann passed away. Because of its significance, the theorem they proved was dubbed "The Prime Number Theorem" [1].

The Essential Components of Mathematics

Prime numbers are termed as "building blocks" of mathematics, since they are fundamental, indivisible parts that make up all other positive integers. The Basic Theorem of Arithmetic states that any positive integer may be written as a unique product of prime numbers. Because of this characteristic, prime numbers are essential to number theory, the area of mathematics that focuses on the attributes of integers.

The Unpredictability of Primes

The seeming randomness and unpredictable nature of prime numbers is one of its most alluring features. Even with such a basic definition, prime numbers do not arise in a predictable way. Despite intensive efforts, mathematicians have not yet discovered a formula or pattern that can predict prime numbers. Prime numbers are fascinating to examine because of their sense of mystery which is added by their unpredictability.

Applications in Cryptography

Prime numbers also play a pivotal role in the field of cryptography as it is hard to factor the product of two huge prime integers, in-fact, several encryption techniques rely on this security. Since prime factorization is a complex problem, it is very difficult in breaking these codes computationally which makes prime numbers crucial in securing online transactions, communications, and sensitive data.

The Riemann Hypothesis

An unresolved mystery of prime numbers have long fascinated mathematicians, even to the point of unexplained mysteries like the Riemann Hypothesis. The distribution of prime numbers over the number line is intimately related to this hypothesis, which is one of the most well-known unsolved issues in mathematics. This difficult riddle still baffles mathematicians, proving the prime numbers' lasting appeal.

Prime Numbers in Nature

It is interesting to note that prime numbers can also be found in unexpected settings in nature. For example, the spirals of sunflower seeds and pinecones frequently correspond to prime number-related Fibonacci sequences. An additional dimension of interest is added by this enigmatic relationship between primes and natural patterns.

Conclusion

The mysterious universe of prime numbers are a tribute to their great beauty, complexity and importance which they carry in the field of mathematics. Prime numbers are of great interest to mathematicians due to their special characteristics, applicability as the fundamental units of mathematics, as well as in realworld scenarios such as encryption. Prime numbers never cease to fascinate and confound mathematicians, whether they are used to secure digital communications or to answer secrets in mathematics. They serve as a constant reminder of the eternal appeal of the mathematical realm.

References

- C. De La Vallee-Poussin. Recherches analytiques sur la théorie des nombres premiers. Ann. Soc. Sc. Bruxelles, 1896.
- [2] R. Fitzpatrick and J. Heiberg. *Euclid's Elements*. Richard Fitzpatrick, 2007.
- [3] C. Sagan. Contact. Pocket Books, 1997.

GOURI CHIRAG

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: chiraggouri@gmail.com

Data: Oil of the Digital Age

SURYAM GUPTA

We are living in the age of Information and Computerization. With the availability of the Internet and its access to people all over the world, a huge amount of data is being produced and stored every day. To give you an idea, per internet minute, up to 400,000 hours of video are viewed on Netflix, almost 500 hours of video are uploaded on YouTube by users, and nearly 42 million messages are shared on WhatsApp. This data continues to grow tremendously. But hold on, what exactly is data? Well, it could be something as simple as when you go to buy a gadget in an electronic store, and the salesperson stores your unique personal information such as Customer_Id, Name, Phone Number, Address, Product, Quantity, etc. into an Excel Sheet named 'April Sales 2021.xls'. Your name, along with your various attributes and preferences, is a record or data. Now, you can only imagine with the amount of people and their interactions on so many different platforms available these days, therefore, handling and processing this data becomes a topic of utmost importance wherein the role of data science comes is observed.

Data Science

Data Science is said to be an umbrella term which has various fields under it, namely Machine Learning, Big Data Analytics, Artificial Intelligence (AI), Neural Networks (Deep Learning), Statistics and Probability, Modeling, amongst others.

This aforementioned, enormous data generated is extremely valuable and if one can observe trends and patterns in it and subsequently make data-driven decisions accordingly, businesses can greatly increase their efficiency and productivity. This is one of the main purpose to visualize using Data Science. It can be defined as a field that uses the Knowledge of Mathematics, Business and Domain Knowledge, Programming Skills, Statistics and Models to extract meaningful insights from raw data. These insights can then be used to see patterns which can be modeled for making predictions and hence help in making better business decisions in the future. Note that 'meaningful insights' does not necessarily mean to directly have a remedy, but rather it can give you an idea on how a problem should be approached. This accounts for the primary difference between Data Science and Data Analytics. Data Science deals with asking the right questions to understand the problem, and Data Analytics deals with answering these questions.

Machine Learning (ML)

Machine Learning is one of the subsets of Artificial Intelligence (AI) that enables the ability to the system to learn and grow through experience without having specifically intended to that level. Machine Learning exploits data to learn and generate accurate results. It emphasizes developing a computer program/algorithm that accesses the available data and uses it to learn by themselves. Basically, a 'Machine Learning Algorithm' is chosen, and the process starts with inputting 'training set' to build a 'Machine Learning Model'. This model is then tested by inputting a new 'validation set' to check the accuracy of predicted results. If the accuracy is not achieved, trained model may be re-trained multiple numbers of times or the algorithm may be tweaked to give better results. This leads to Machine Learning Algorithms continually developing on their own and producing the most feasible solutions that gradually improve in accuracy and consistency over time.

A Working Example

Suppose you have the following data points

x	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
v	5	10	15	20	25	30	35	40	45	50

Looking at this data, you begin by choosing one of the most common algorithms in Machine Learning, known as Linear Regression. This whole data is then split into 'training set' and 'validation set'. Inputting values of both the coordinates from x = 1 to x = 7into your model as training data, it recognizes a pattern and concludes that all these data points fall on the line y = 5x. Now, inputting your validation data, i.e., both coordinates of x = 8, 9, 10 into this model to check if the model can correctly predict the accurate answers. It predicts 40, 45 and 50, respectively, as answers, which match with the values in the original data. You conclude that you have built an accurate Machine Learning Model which can now be used for any number of values of x to predict correct values of y in the future.

(Note that the above example is very basic, just to give you an idea of how things work on the surface level. It is very important to first look and understand the raw data and then choose an algorithm which might suit within our limits. The data is split into one more section known as 'Testing Set' and there are various rules regarding the proportion of this splitting, as it all depends on the original data set. Another point to note is that the data used above is absolutely perfect, hence it builds a perfect model which gives answers with 100% accuracy. But in practicality, the original data is very random, and you almost never get a perfect model. Hence even after building one, you need to keep working on it so that it becomes more and more accurate.)



Figure 2.1: Data points and regression line

Classification of Machine Learning

Machine learning algorithms are categorized into two types: supervised machine learning and unsupervised machine learning.

Supervised Supervised learning algorithms are employed when the data is labeled, i.e., it has input and output parameters in a completely machine-readable pattern. Further Supervised learning is divided into:

Regression Linear and Multiple Regression, Decision Trees, and Random Forest are all frequently employed techniques for estimating continuous values (variables may or may not be linearly dependent).

Classification Some of the classification techniques for categorical variables include K-Nearest Neighbors (KNN), Logistic Regression, Support Vector Machine (SVM), and Naïve Bayes.

Unsupervised Unsupervised learning algorithms come into action when the data is unlabeled, i.e., it only has one or none of the parameters in a machine-readable form (no target value), and hence no labeled data is available to learn from. Further Unsupervised learning is divided into:

Clustering This is a method of dividing objects based on their similarities and differences from others. K-Means and DBSCAN clustering methods are two widely used models.

Association-rule analysis This is used to identify interesting relationships between variables. The Apriori and Hidden Markov Model algorithms can be implemented.

Applications of Machine Learning

- **Recommendation Systems:** Netflix recommending shows you might like and Amazon recommending similar products are great examples of how their models were trained by your previous searches and preferences, resulting in giving you a better personalized experience.
- Speech Recognition: Google's 'Search by voice' option, Google Assistant, Siri, Cortana, Alexa, all use ML Algorithms for Speech Recognition and converting voice instructions into text.
- **Predictive Algorithms:** Dating sites match people by predicting which individuals might be compatible for each other based on their likes and interests.
- Others include: Image Recognition, Traffic Prediction, Self-Driving Cars, Email Spam, Malware Filtering, and Medical Diagnosis, etc.

Data Analytics

Data analysis is the process of cleaning, converting, and modeling data to identify relevant information for commercial decision-making. It does not matter whether you are working in Big Tech companies like Facebook, Amazon, Apple, Netflix, Google (FAANG) or Microsoft, or you have a small business, say, an electronic store of your own, everyone needs to make use of Data Analysis to make better decisions for more productivity. Analyzing and correcting the mistakes made in the past eventually results in the growth of the business.

A Real-life Example

Suppose you made some sales for the month of April from your electronic store and now you want to come up with a strategy which would ensure more sales in the following months. You give your data, i.e., the Excel Sheet named 'April Sales 2021.xls' to a data scientist. They build a model, run your data through it to see for some potential patterns, and conclude the finding of 2 products which are sold together the most could be helpful. To find this pair of products, the data analyst goes through the steps of various processes and comes to the conclusion that the laptop 'Lenovo Legion 5i' and the mouse 'Lenovo Legion M300 RGB Gaming Mouse' are sold together the most. In this case, an effective marketing strategy would be to teach the salespeople in your store that whenever a customer is interested in buying the aforementioned laptop, the aforementioned mouse should be recommended to them as they are very likely to buy it, according to our data analysis. This strategy will lead to an increase in sales and an eventual growth in business.

Just imagine how many more such complex and interesting business problems could be questioned and answered through Data Science and Data Analysis!

Data Analysis Process

Define Goals

First of all, you need to have a clear idea of why you are analyzing, i.e., the aim or purpose of this analysis and what type of data analysis (text, statistical, diagnostic, predictive, etc.) you are going to implement. This helps with the type of data you will need to collect and analyze.

Data Collection

You now bring all the required data into one place for organizing, cleaning, and analysis. Excel is a great platform for storing your data.

Data Cleaning

One of the most important processes that have to be compulsorily done before beginning your analysis. This includes removing some of the data which is irrelevant to your aim of analysis, deleting duplicate records and extra white spaces which might give calculation errors, checking for spelling mistakes, and making sure that the overall data is clean and free of errors and outliers.

Data Analysis

This is the part where you use various Data Analysis Tools and software to manipulate the data, so as to understand, interpret, and derive insights and conclusions by finding the exact information you needed to answer.

Data Visualization

Sometimes it can get difficult to look for trends and patterns among so many values in a huge dataset, and hence, visualizing the data by converting it into charts and graphs makes it easier for our brain to spot them. Also, as a data analyst, you understand all the numbers and processing, but your superiors, who ultimately have to take the decision on whether to implement your analysis or not, might not have that level of understanding. Hence it becomes very important for you to show your analysis through convincing charts and graphs to make it easier for them to understand and process.

Data Analysis Tools

• Microsoft Excel: Excel is one of the most common tools and a 'must know' for manipulating spreadsheets and for doing simple analysis. Arithmetic Manipulation, Functions and Formulas, Absolute and Relative references, Filtering and Sorting, VLOOKUP and HLOOKUP functions and Pivot Tables are some of its most common features.



Figure 2.2: Excel and its various features

- **Python:** Along with basic programming skills, one also needs to have knowledge of the wide varieties of libraries and packages that Python provides:
 - Pandas for data manipulation and analysis
 - NumPy and SciPy for mathematical and scientific computations
 - Matplotlib, Seaborn, and Plotly for data visualization
 - SciKit-Learn for building ML models
 - TensorFlow and Keras for Deep Learning models

Note that instead of Python IDEs like PyCharm or text editors like Visual Studio Code, Jupyter Notebook is preferred for Data Science purposes.

Jo Edit	View Insert	Cell Kernel Wid	igets Help	Not Trusted Python 3
+ × 4	8 16 🕈 4	🕨 🕨 Run 🔳 C 🗰	Markdown 👻 🖬	
	Importing	Necessary Libraries		
In [47]:	<pre>import pands from datetis import matpl import seabo sns.set_styl Immatplotlib</pre>	is as pd is import datetime, dat iotlib.pyplot as plt orn as ins ie('white') inline	æ	
	Loading D	ata		
In [48]:	Loading D	ata s = pd.read_csv(r*C:\k ls = pd.read_csv(r*C:\	Sers\Lenovo\Desktop\Jupyter Python Programs Users\Lenovo\Desktop\Jupyter Python Program	\Unschool Machine Learning Projects\Project 5 - Mov N\Unschool Machine Learning Projects\Project 5 - Mov
In [48]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail	ata is = pd.read_csv(r*C:\& ls = pd.read_csv(r*C:\ Data	sers\Lenovo\Desktop\Jupyter Python Program Users\Lenovo\Desktop\Jupyter Python Program	Waschool Rachine Learning Projects\Project 5 - Rev NURSchool Rachine Learning Projects\Project 5 - Re
In [48]: In [49]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail	ata is = pd.read_csv(r*C:\k is = pd.read_csv(r*C:\k Data is.head()	nsersllennonlæsktopllupyter Python Program Usersllennonlæsktopllupyter Python Program	Vanschool Rachine Learning Projects/Project 5 - Roo alunschool Rachine Learning Projects/Project 5 - Roo
In [48]: In [49]: Out[49]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail * Exploring movie_detail movied	ata (s = pd.read_csv(r*C:\& lls = pd.read_csv(r*C:\ Data (s.head()	nersllenovi@sktoplloyter Python Program Diersllenovi@sktoplloyter Python Program	Uniched Richle Learning Projects/Project 5 - Rov Uniched Richle Learning Projects/Project 5 - Ro
In [48]: In [49]: Out[49]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail * Exploring movie_detail movie_detail	ata (s = pd.read_csv(r*C1)k ls = pd.read_csv(r*C1) Data (s.head() 106 Toy Story (1996)	ners\Lenov\Desktop\Jugyter Python Program Suers\Lenov\Desktop\Jugyter Python Program Aperova Abertury(kenador/Chiers/Carefy Janua)	tunctual muchine Learning Project/Urroject 5 - New Numerical Realise Learning Project/Urroject 5 - Nev
In [48]: In [49]: Out[49]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail * Exploring movie_detail movie_detail 0 1 1 2	ata (s = pd.read_csv(r*C))((s = pd.read_csv(r*C)) Data (s.head() 109 Story (1996) Jumag (1996)	ners)Leonollocktop)Joyster lython Program Seers)Leonollocktop/Joyster lython Program genes Advetsvplomator/District Parks Advetsvplomator/District Parks	lünichail Richler Learning ProjettiVrojet 5 - Nov Münichail Richler Learning ProjettiVrojet 5 - No
In [48]: In [49]: Out[49]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail Exploring movie_detail movied 0 1 1 2 2 3	ata is = pd.read_csv(r*Ci)k ls = pd.read_csv(r*Ci)k Data is.head() Use Toy Story (1996) Junap(1996) Chumper Od Mon (1996)	ners(Leonov)decktigs/bayter hythos Program orrest(Leonov)decktigs/bayter hythos Program Abertangkonadov:ChercConnedy Parkas Abertangkonadov:ChercConnedy Parkas AbertangKonadov:ChercConnedy Parkas	Vanustani mutike Learning revjetti/Vergett 5 - New Vanuschaft Ruchte Learning Projetti/Vergett 5 - Ne
In [48]: In [49]: Out[40]:	Loading D movie_detail rating_detail Exploring movie_detail movie_detail 0 1 1 2 2 3 3 4	ata (s = pd_read_csv(r*C)) (s = pd_read_csv(r*C)) Data (s.head() 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10	sans Lanasoldasking Uspyter Aython Angu ga Daer Llanosoldasking Uspyter Aython Angu Advanzacional and Canton Canton Advanzacional and Canton Constantino and Canton Constantino and	Nonchel motor coming myjettivejetti

Figure 2.3: Jupyter Notebook interface

• SQL: Structured Query Language is one of the most requested skills in Data Science. It is a programming language used to query and manage data in relational databases. SQL can interact with various Relational Database Management Systems (RDBMS) like MySQL, SQLite, PostgreSQL, Oracle, etc.

Rep50. No. Mit. View Dany, Window Help										
📴 PNK v 🖉 plot v								+ iniz	Q Search	🕼 Saryam Dapta 🗸 📋
Untilled query, Jun 15, 2021 × +										
Untitled query, Jun 15, 2021										► fan - 68
⊙ Details □ Comments 菜 Add to dasht	card () Schedule que	y S Version	hatery							
+ Add variable										
1 SHOW Tabless	Unlited every	Jun 15, 2021								
3 SELECT	Success (4 rps	rs) 0.195 second								7.02
 FROM employee WICEE branch 1d = 2 				Expl	He 500	Data	Charl Expert-	0		
6 OTOER BY First_sames	ann id	for some	bet name	hirth day		niev	and the second s	branch M		
	108	Angela	Matin	1971-06-25		63000	102	2		
	104	Kety	Kapoor	1980-62-05		\$\$000	902	2		
	305	Michael	Sort	1964-03-15	N	25000	100	2		
	10	stamey	Hudson	1900-62-19	м	19000	102	1		
	Unified garry	Jun 15, 2021								
	Soccess (5-10)	rs) 0.193 second								7.027
				5.95	100 SQL	Deta	Chirl Expert+	0		
	Tables, in pl	ier i								
	branch									
	branch_supp	far.								
	client									
	enpoyee									

Figure 2.4: PopSql interface

• **Tableau:** Tableau is a powerful Data Visualization and Analytics software. It can easily connect to a data source and create data visualizations, maps, and interactive dashboards which update in real-time.

Other popular and important tools include Mi-

crosoft Power BI, Apache Spark, Apache Hadoop, RapidMiner, KNIME, and Qlik. **Conclusion** Data Science is referred to as "The Sexiest Job of the 21st century" by Harvard Business Review. As the data is fast-increasing in exponential rate, it certainly stands out as an emerging discipline with a promising future, and people are now starting to understand its value. Data science is obviously going to grow, having applications in a broad range of sectors such as security, transportation, delivery, healthcare, travel, banking, education, energy, agriculture, and many more.

SURYAM GUPTA

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: suryamgupta12345@gmail.com

Inefficiency of Rulers

GURU PREETHAM L.

Rulers are instruments, which are used to measure (short) distances. We have been introduced to them, BUT we have not been introduced to the inefficiency hidden in the rulers which are generally being used. Rulers, by far, have been inefficient because we have had too many markings than necessary. Let us delve into a friendly mathematical discussion that helps us deal with this inefficiency.

Consider a general 15-cm ruler which has 16 markings on it. Now, let us consider the following set of markings and see if it will do the job.

$$M = \{0, 1, 3, 6, 10, 14, 15\}$$

A ruler with the markings as in the set M above will allow us to measure every length to 15 cm. Now, having seen a basic case, let us visit a more advanced case of measuring 100 cm. For an explicit notation, it is worth mentioning that a general n cm ruler has n+1 number of markings. A 100-cm ruler (if it exists) would have 101 markings on it. Instead, consider the following set of markings:

$$M_1 = \{1, 2, 3, \cdots, 49, 50, 100\}$$

With the above set of 52 markings, we have already come halfway down from the number of markings we have, that do the job of measuring. Now, let us try a few more sets of markings that do the job:

$$M_{2} = \{1, 2, 3, \cdots, 24, 50, 75, 100\}$$
$$M_{3} = \{1, 2, 3, \cdots, 9, 20, 30, \cdots, 90, 100\}$$
$$M_{4} = \{1, 2, 3, 4, 10, 15, 20, \cdots, 100\}$$

Compared to the set of markings M_1 , the number of markings in M_2 , 28, has gone almost halfway down yet again. The number of markings using M_3 is 19, and that of M_4 is 24(!). An eagle-eyed reader would have noticed a clear pattern being used to generate a new set of markings, i.e., to write all the markings till n-1 and then the multiples of n till we get to the number desired. For now, let us confine n to a multiple of 100 and mathematically derive that n = 10, as seen above, is the most efficient case. Let us denote the set of markings, a function of n (confined to be a multiple of 10), as follows:

$$M(n) = \{1, 2, 3, \cdots, n-1, 2n, 3n, \cdots 100\}$$

We will use card(A) to denote the cardinality of a non-empty set A. Cardinality of M(n) is

$$\operatorname{card}(M(n)) = n + \frac{100}{n} - 1$$

which is a function of n. Let us use calculus techniques to find the least value of n

$$f(n) = n + \frac{100}{n} - 1 \Rightarrow f'(n) = 1 - \frac{100}{n^2}$$
$$f'(n) = 0 \Rightarrow n = 10$$
$$f''(n) = \frac{200}{n^3} \Rightarrow f''(10) > 0$$

i.e., f(n) has a local minimum at n = 10 and our intuition is verified.

Let us extend this further to the case of measuring from 1 to k. However, we will have two cases depending on whether k is a multiple of $n \ [k \in \mathbb{N}$ and $n \in \mathbb{N}$].

Case - 1 :
$$k = qn + 0 \ [k, n, q \in \mathbb{N}]$$

The set of markings M(n) is given by:

$$M(n) = \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 0, 1, 2, 3, \cdots, n-1, 2n, \\ 3n, \cdots, (q-1)n, qn = k \end{array} \right\}$$

The number of markings as a function of n is given by:

$$f(n) = n + q - 1 = n + \frac{k}{n} - 1$$

This function, as can be seen, is similar to the one obtained in the case of measuring 1-100, but for k in the place of 100. Therefore, the maximum value of n would be:

$$f'(n) = 1 - \frac{k}{n^2} = 0 \Rightarrow n = \sqrt{k}.$$

If k is a perfect square, then the required value of n would be x such that $x^2 = k$. Else, n could be taken as (we will prove the optimality later):

$$n = |\sqrt{k}|.$$

Case - 2 : $k = qn + r, 1 \le r < n \ [n, q, n, r \in \mathbb{N}]$

The set of markings M(n) would be:

$$M(n) = \left\{ \begin{array}{c} 0, 1, 2, 3, \cdots, n-1, 2n, \\ 3n, \cdots, (q-1)n, qn, qn+r = k \end{array} \right\}$$

In this case, qn+1, qn+2, ... qn+r can be measured as follows:

$$\begin{array}{rcl} qn+1 &=& [qn+r]-[r-1] \\ qn+2 &=& [qn+r]-[r-2] \\ \vdots &\vdots &\vdots \\ qn+r &=& [qn+r]-[r-r] \end{array}$$

The number of markings is n + q.

So, the maximum number of markings needed to measure distances from 1 to k is $\leq n + q$ (n + q - 1)in **Case-1**). To obtain the upper bound, i.e., n + q in terms of k note that:

 $n \le \sqrt{k} < n+1 \Rightarrow n^2 \le k < n^2 + 2n + 1 = n(n+2) + 1$ the one we have obtained:

Comparing R.H.S of the inequality with k =qn + r:

$$q \le n+2$$

Proof : (By Contradiction) Suppose q > n+2

$$k = qn + r > n^2 + 2n + r$$
$$> n^2 + 2n + 1$$

which is a contradiction.

$$q \leq n+2$$

Now, obtaining the upper bound (i.e., n + q) in terms of k:

$$n+q \le 2n+2 \le 2\sqrt{k+2}$$

Is our solution optimal? By optimality, we mean obtaining a theoretical value of the required markings. Suppose we have mmarkings. The number of distances we can measure with these *m* markings is $\binom{m}{2}$. Therefore, if we wish to measure distances from 1 to k:

$$k \le \binom{m}{2} = \frac{(m)(m-1)}{2}$$
$$2k \le m^2 - m = (m - \frac{1}{2})^2 - \frac{1}{4}$$
$$2k + \frac{1}{4} \le m - \frac{1}{2} \Rightarrow \sqrt{2k} \le \sqrt{2k + \frac{1}{4}} + \frac{1}{2} \le m$$

Comparing the theoretical solution with

$$\sqrt{2k} \le m \le 2\sqrt{k} + 2$$

i.e., the number of markings we have obtained is just $\sqrt{2}$ times bigger than the theoretical number, which is quite good!

GURU PREETHAM L

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VALLABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007

E-MAIL ID: gurupreethamlakkakula@gmail.com

Exploring the Depth of Graph Theory

PRIYA PATEL

Graph theory is an abstract field of study branching from mathematics and has a wide range of applications in science and technology. This article explores the fascinating field of graph theory, revealing its fundamental concepts, practical applications, and ongoing research.

The basic concept of graphs was initially established by the Swiss mathematician Leonhard Euler, who was one of the most well-known mathematicians of the eighteenth century. His work on the well-known "Seven Bridges of Königsberg Problem" was crucial to the foundation and advancement of graph theory. A graph is fundamentally made up of two components: edges (also known as links) and vertices (also known as nodes). The nodes are connected by edges to define the required problem. These connections can be used to represent a variety of interactions, such as friendships in a social network, communication links between computers in a network infrastructure, and routes connecting cities in a transportation network. The number of vertices, also referred to as the degree of a vertex, is one of the most basic concepts in graph theory. It is essential to understand the concept of the degree of vertices to analyze the connectivity and structure of graphs. For example, in a social network, individuals with a high degree of connections may be considered influential or central to the network.

Further, graph theory offers strong methods for analyzing the connectivity of graphs. Depending upon the connectivity, a graph can be divided into two parts namely connected and unconnected. A graph is connected if there is a path connecting each pair of vertices, whereas an unconnected graph is made up of two or more independent components. The study of connectivity has important implications in various fields, including computer networking, where ensuring robust connectivity is essential for reliable communication.

Graph theory provides insights into more complex structures and characteristics of graphs. For example, a cycle in a graph is a closed path with only the initial and last vertices repeated. Understanding cycles is essential for identifying loops or recurring patterns in networks, which can be beneficial for identifying irregularities or streamlining network operations.

Graph coloring, which is the process of assigning colors to a graph's vertices so that no two adjacent vertices have the same color, is one of the key ideas in graph theory. Graph coloring is generally used in timetable design, work schedules, and even map coloring problems, where areas with shared borders need to be colored differently.

Moreover, graph theory is essential to the development and evaluation of algorithms. Graph theory principles are used by many well-known algorithms, such as Dijkstra's shortest path and Kruskal's least spanning tree methods, to effectively tackle optimization problems. These algorithms can effectively handle complex computing tasks by taking advantage of the inherent structure found in graphs, which will also be helpful in the improvement of the algorithms.

Even though it may not seem very relevant, graph theory has many significant and practical uses in computer science, mathematics, and other fields. Graph theory can serve as an effective tool to find solutions to problems from various domains. Consider, for example, a large warehouse filled with thousands of products accessible to pick up at multiple points. The primary objective is to generate a route through the warehouse that will allow you to retrieve every item while minimizing the overall distance covered. This is equivalent to the well-known traveling salesperson problem. With applications ranging from social networks to computer algorithms, graph theory is a fascinating and versatile field of mathematics that examines the characteristics of networks between connected nodes. Additionally, graph theory still serves as a catalyst for novel studies in a variety of disciplines, such as computer science, biology, and the social sciences. Graph theory has a wide range of applications, from modeling the spread of diseases in epidemiology to forecasting and analyzing the structure of protein interaction networks in bioinformatics.

In conclusion, graph theory offers a strong foundation for comprehending and examining complex networks across a range of fields. It is an essential tool for academicians, engineers, and analysts, because of its rich theoretical foundation and real-world applications. As we continue to unravel the mysteries of interconnected systems, graph theory will undoubtedly continue to be at the forefront of innovation and discovery.

PRIYA PATEL DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-

LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, E-MAIL ID: priyapatel0503@gmail.com Surat, Gujarat, India-395007

The Circle: 7 different perspectives

Roshan Raj

A circle is a uniform and beautiful curved line without corners or cracks, all its points in the plane. This not being a formal definition. Still, this figure is a very part of our knowledge and civilization, as it appears in an outline of the sun and the human eyes and various depictions are found in petroglyphs and cave paintings, from Egyptian Rhind papyrus to the Dharma wheel and mandalas, in the books of Sulbhsutra and Euclid's Elements. This is a transcendental figure, simple yet profound.

In this article, we will encounter different ways to understand the circle. How the ordinary geometry and a relatively tricky algebraic topology perceive and define the exact figure uniquely. A series of lectures by NJ Wildberger on algebraic topology is recommended for interested readers.

Geometrical Point of View

A circle \mathbb{S}^1 , in the Euclidean plane, is defined by a polynomial, $(x-a)^2 + (y-b)^2 - r^2 = 0$. The radius is r, and the centre is c = (a, b), expressing the amount by which the circle's centre c is shifted from the origin (0, 0). In tracing out the outline of a circle, we can happily and arguably introduce the idea of a parametric approach. In an attempt to make a stereographic projection of the circle (see figure 5.1), we have $e(h) = \left(\frac{1-h^2}{1+h^2}, \frac{2h}{1+h^2}\right)$. It is like opening the circle and projecting the complete circle over the real number line.

Now, this so-called rational parametrization, can be seen to provide its algebraic analogue: transcendental parametrization as $\rho(\theta) = (\cos \theta, \sin \theta)$: Your probable acquaintance may have occurred after studying wave propagation; where around a similar note, we open the circle on the sinusoidal wave rather on a line. Talking about the parameters, we see h is any element of \mathbb{R} along with ∞ , and θ is a closed parameter $0 \leq \theta \leq 2\pi$. With such rational parametrization, one which we describe does bear a point a h = 0, and its diametrically opposite point is calibrated to be $h = \infty$.



Figure 5.1: Stereographic projection of rational points on the circle (Wikimedia Commons)

Complex Number Point of View

In complex plane, where $z = re^{i\theta} + c = r(\cos \theta + i\sin \theta) + c$, it can define a circular loop by |z - c| = r, where r is radius and c is the centre. One can relate its link to geometry when on invoking the representation of a unit circle on the Argand plane.

Algebraic Topology Point of View

In algebraic topology, a circle \mathbb{S}^1 is not defined geometrically with a centre and radius but rather through the concept of quotients in topological spaces (the finest topology that makes the projection map to its equivalence class continuous):

- The quotient of Real Numbers by Integers: The circle is the result of taking all real numbers and identifying any two numbers that differ by an integer. Imagine a number line stretching infinitely in both directions. Glueing the ends together (identifying 1 with 0, 2 with 1, and so on) creates a loop the circle.
- The quotient of the Unit Interval: Another way to view it is as the quotient of the closed unit interval [0, 1] by the equivalence relation that identifies 0 and 1. Here, we take a line segment of length 1 and connect its endpoints, again forming a loop- the circle.

Both these approaches are mathematically equivalent and give us the circle as a topological space. This space inherits its topological properties (like continuity and connectedness) from the real numbers or the unit interval.

In short, a circle is typically described as a result of taking the quotient space of the unit circle's circumference, where points are considered equivalent based on a specific equivalence relation. This relation often encompasses rotations and reflections.

Moduli Space Point of View



Figure 5.2: Description of a circle as per moduli space

Consider an affine plane \mathbb{A}^2 ; the space of all onedimensional subspace \mathbb{P}^1 , defines circle \mathbb{S}^1 . The reason is simple: as a one-dimensional subspace consists of lines (projective lines $\in P^1$) passing through origins, all such sets of infinitely many lines would make out a circle. Conversely, we can bisect a given circle diametrically through infinitely many diameters. Then, each diameter is, in fact, a line through the origin, which again is an element of a one-dimensional subspace of \mathbb{A}^2 . Through such prescription, the circle is not like infinity-thin pizza slices, but a circle with an x-axis as its only tangent, and the rest of the bisectors are projective lines. It may require you to look at the illustration 5.2.

I insist you to recall the stereographic projection of the circle, which is told to be related as if the circle is opened. Merge this idea with the above description of a circle with an x-axis as its only tangent. Notice that both are related. If we are to mark the tangent point as h = 0, then its diametrically opposite point would be projected at infinity at ∞ and $-\infty$ on the x-axis. Does not it sound like rational parametrization? Yes, it does.

Polygonal Representation Point of View

Topologically, a circle \mathbb{S}^1 is any closed polygon or, formally, the topological space that is homeomorphic (topological isomorphism) to the unit circle in the Euclidean plane (\mathbb{R}^2). In short, any polygon can be deformed (topologically) into a circle in finite steps. Hence, all polygons are topologically invariant to the circle.

One must ask, is a line and a circle find common ground? It is known that a line is infinitely thin, and its ends extend to infinity, but the circle is compact. One should learn that compactness is one of the topological properties. Technically, there does exist a continuous bijection between affine line \mathbb{A}^1 and circle

Knot Theoretic Point of View

A circle is an unknot in \mathbb{A}^3 space! A more sophisticated definition can be obtained. Let p and q be two relatively prime, then a torus knot with parameters (p, q) is formed by threading a string (rope) through a torus's opening p times while making q complete revolutions before connecting the ends. As a result of this definition, a circle is a particular case of a torus knot with no internal nodes or all (1, q) = (p, 1)-torus knots, as per equivalence properties.



Figure 5.3: Description of a circle as per Knot Theory

Translation on a Line Point of View

One should accept (without proof) that a circle carries a group structure, which is abelian and noncyclic, $S^1 = \{z \in \mathbb{C} : |z| = 1\}$, is called a *circle group*. If defining *unit translation on a affine line* \mathbb{A}^1 towards right as τ and its inverse τ^{-1} (towards left). We can finally perceive circle as $S^1 \approx \frac{\mathbb{A}^1}{(\tau, \tau^{-1})}$.

To get a pictorial understanding based on the above expression, one can introduce the concept of orbit consisting of those unit translations (τ and τ^{-1}) and all its iterates (multiple) on \mathbb{A}^1 . We define a family of the orbit of point x (red) and the orbit of y (blue); see figure (5.4). Suppose, when in due course, varying xpasses through y, then moving (translating) orbits will get us back to the initial situation at the next point $\tau(x)$. We note all such orbits between x and $\tau(x)$ are distinct, but the ends are the same and produce the same properties. Thus, we induce that the space of all orbits to be a family of circle. More intuitively, an n-iteration within the closed interval is similar to tracing over the circle n-times, where the initial and final point corresponds to x and $\tau(x)$. Also, y is any other point on the circle. This correspondence between affine line and circle should not be taken as if \mathbb{A}^1 and \mathbb{S}^1 are homeomorphic, and in fact, they are not.



Figure 5.4: Orbit of points x and y on affine line \mathbb{A}^1 .

Conclusion

In this article, though non-rigorously, we have explored the concept of a circle from seven different perspectives, each shedding light on its unique characteristics and mathematical interpretations. From the geometric representation defining a circle in terms of its centre and radius to the algebraic topology's quotient space approach and from the complex plane representation to its connection with moduli space and knot theory, we have witnessed the circle's versatility and depth. Additionally, the polygonal representation's insight into topological invariance and the abstraction of the circle as a group in translation on a line further enrich our understanding.

Through these diverse viewpoints, we appreciate the circle as not merely a geometric shape but a fundamental mathematical concept with profound implications across various fields.

.....

Roshan Raj

DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICS, SARDAR VALLABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GU-JARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: roshankaalkrit@gmail.com

Functional Analysis and its Unique Role in Understanding Deep Learning, Machine Learning, and Neural Networks

RAJARAPU MAHESH

Abstract

This article explores the distinctive contributions of functional analysis to the realms of deep learning, machine learning, and neural networks. We delve into the theoretical underpinnings and practical applications of functional analysis, showcasing its unique role in enhancing our understanding of these sophisticated computational frameworks. Through real-world examples and mathematical formulations, this article unravel the symbiotic relationship between functional analysis and the intricacies of modern artificial intelligence.

Introduction

Modern artificial intelligence (AI) is a dynamic field encompassing various sub-disciplines such as deep learning, machine learning, and neural networks. While these domains have revolutionized the way machines learn and make decisions, the role of functional analysis in shaping their theoretical foundations and practical applications is often overlooked. We aim to bridge this gap by elucidating the unique contributions of functional analysis to our comprehension of deep learning, machine learning, and neural networks.

Functional Analysis: A Theoretical Lens

Functional analysis, a foundational branch of mathematics, enriches our comprehension of deep learning. Particularly within the neural networks, through a rigorous exploration of function spaces and their intrinsic properties.

Consider the function space C([a, b]), where functions are studied as primary objects. In the realm of deep learning, this abstraction accommodates the transformative dynamics of neural networks. The quintessential equation characterizing neural network operations is:

$F(x) = \sigma(Wx + b)$

where, W signifies the weight operator, x represents the input vector, and b is the bias term. This equation unveils the underlying structure of neural network transformations. The weight operator W induces a linear transformation on the input vector x, while the activation function σ introduces non-linearity.

Functional analysis provides a lens to scrutinize these operators. Key properties, such as boundedness, compactness, and spectral characteristics, come into focus:

$Wx = \lambda x$

where λ represents the eigenvalue associated with the transformation. This analysis evaluates the nature of how neural networks process and transform input data.

The convergent properties within the function spaces are crucial to the iterative optimization algorithm during the network training. One of the properties is expressed as:

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \|f_n - f\| = 0$$

where, f_n represents a sequence of functions converging to f. This topic also offers insights into the convergence behavior of optimization algorithms, enhancing our understanding.

Further, considering the integral operator T on a function f defined by:

$$Tf(x) = \int_{a}^{x} f(t)dt$$

Functional analysis techniques can be applied to analyze its properties within the context of neural network operations.

In essence, functional analysis acts as a mathematical language, articulating the intricate dynamics of neural networks. By exploring function spaces, operators, and convergence properties, functional analysis provides a unique perspective on the underlying structures propelling the success of deep learning in processing and learning from complex data.

Understanding Neural Networks through Functional Analysis

Neural networks, serves as the computational cornerstone inspired by the human brain, forming the backbone of modern artificial intelligence. In unraveling the behavior of these intricate structures, functional analysis assumes a pivotal role. We will delve into the nuanced understanding facilitated by functional analysis through the lens of equations.

Consider a neural network layer's output vector F(x) when given an input vector x:

$$F(x) = \sigma(Wx + b)$$

where, the symbols hold specific significance: σ denotes the activation function, W represents the weight operator, x stands for the input vector, and b signifies the bias term. This equation encapsulates the essence of neural network transformations. The weight operator W induces a linear transformation on the input vector x, while the activation function σ introduces non-linearity to the overall operation.

Expanding further, we can express this transformation in terms of linear algebra. Let $x = [x_1, x_2, \dots, x_n]^T$ be the input vector, $W = [w_{ij}]$ be the weight matrix, and $b = [b_1, b_2, \dots, b_m]^T$ be the bias vector. The output F(x) can be written as:

$$F(x) = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma(w_{11}x_1 + w_{12}x_2 + \dots + w_{1n}x_n + b_1) \\ \sigma(w_{21}x_1 + w_{22}x_2 + \dots + w_{2n}x_n + b_2) \\ \vdots \\ \sigma(w_{m1}x_1 + w_{m2}x_2 + \dots + w_{mn}x_n + b_m) \end{bmatrix}$$

This representation captures the multidimensional nature of neural network transformations, with each element of the output vector F(x) being influenced by a corresponding set of weights and the input vector.

The application of functional analysis extends to the examination of these transformations within the context of Banach spaces and linear operators. For instance, analyzing the spectral properties of the weight operator W contributes to our understanding of how the network processes the available information. This involves exploring eigenvalues, eigenvectors, and the impact of different activation functions on the overall behavior of the neural network.

In essence, functional analysis provides a comprehensive framework for unraveling the intricate

transformations taking place within neural networks. By leveraging concepts from linear algebra, Banach spaces, and linear operators, we gain a deeper understanding of the underlying mechanisms driving the success of neural networks in learning and processing complex data.

Machine Learning and the Landscape of Function Spaces

In the expansive realm of machine learning, functional analysis lays the groundwork for a profound understanding of function spaces, enriching the landscape where learning algorithms unfold.

The formulation of learning problems in terms of functions within Hilbert or Banach spaces is encapsulated by the equation:

$$f: \mathcal{X} \to \mathcal{Y}$$

where, f represents the learning algorithm mapping input data \mathcal{X} to model outputs \mathcal{Y} . The choice of function spaces, such as Hilbert or Banach spaces, becomes pivotal in shaping the dynamics of this mapping.

In order to search the relationships between input data and model outputs, we can express this mapping in a more detailed form. Let X be the input space and Y be the output space within a chosen function space, the mapping f can be represented as:

$$f: X \to Y$$

The utilization of function spaces facilitates a nuanced exploration of the intricate relationships and patterns inherent in the data. Leveraging functional analysis, machine learning models can be formulated and optimized within these function spaces, fostering the development of more robust and efficient learning algorithms.

In essence, the adoption of functional analysis in the context of machine learning equips practitioners with a powerful mathematical framework to articulate, analyze, and optimize learning algorithms within carefully chosen function spaces.

Real-world Applications: Bridging Theory and Practice

The synergy of functional analysis with deep learning, machine learning, and neural networks manifests itself in concrete and has impactful real-world applications. In image processing, functional analysis proves instrumental in modeling complex image spaces, thereby enabling efficient representation and manipulation. Let us explore these applications in a more detailed equation-centric format:

Image Processing:

In image processing, functional analysis contributes to the modeling of complex image spaces through the utilization of mathematical expressions. Consider an image I represented as a function $I: \mathcal{D} \to \mathbb{R}^n$, where \mathcal{D} is the image domain and n represents the number of pixels. Functional analysis allows us to formulate and analyze operations on image spaces, enhancing the efficiency of representation and manipulation. One notable example is the application of integral operators to capture spatial relationships and features within images:

$$T[I](x,y) = \int_{\mathcal{D}} I(t,s)K(x-t,y-s) \, dt \, ds$$

where, T represents the integral operator, I(t, s)denotes the image function, and K(x-t, y-s) is a kernel function capturing spatial interactions. Functional analysis techniques facilitate the exploration and optimization of these operators for tasks like image filtering and feature extraction.

Natural Language Processing:

In natural language processing (NLP), the study of function spaces plays a crucial role in the development of sophisticated algorithms for language understanding and generation. Consider a language model M as a function $M : S \to \mathcal{L}$, mapping sequences of symbols S to linguistic representations \mathcal{L} . Functional analysis enables the formulation of language models with rich expressiveness. A common approach involves representing language sequences using function spaces, where each symbol is associated with a function describing its contextual embedding:

$$M[s](x) = \int_{\mathcal{S}} s(t)K(x-t) \, dt$$

where, M[s](x) represents the contextual embedding of symbol s at position x, K(x-t) is a kernel function capturing contextual relationships, and the integral operation integrates over the entire sequence. Functional analysis provides a robust framework for designing and optimizing such language models, enhancing their capability to understand and generate natural language.

In summary, the application of functional analysis in image processing and natural language processing translates theoretical advancements into tangible solutions. The use of integral operators and function spaces exemplifies the bridge between theoretical insights and practical applications, showcasing the transformative potential of functional analysis in shaping real-world technologies.

Conclusion: Embracing the Synergy

Concluding the exploration of functional analysis in the realms of deep learning, machine learning, and neural networks, it stands as a cornerstone offering both theoretical insights and practical applications. The unique contributions of functional analysis enrich our capabilities in designing, analyzing, and optimizing intelligent systems.

As artificial intelligence continues its evolution, the symbiotic relationship between functional analysis and computational frameworks becomes imperative. Embracing this synergy not only refines our understanding of intelligent systems but also paves the way for groundbreaking innovations and advancements in the field of AI.

RAJARAPU MAHESH

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: rajarapumahesh26@gmail.com

Infinity and Beyond

VIBHOR SINGH

"There are as many Integers as there are Natural numbers."

When I first read this statement, it did not make any sense to me, as it did not to many of the readers reading this article, while some of you might already be familiar with what I am talking about.

Infinity is a construct which Mathematicians use when they want to describe something uncountable, or a very large number. One truth about infinity is that it cannot be described as a single description. When drawing a number line, either it can be \mathbb{R} , \mathbb{N} , or \mathbb{Z} , we take $\pm \infty$ at the extremums of the number line. But we must always keep in mind that Infinities are not the same as any other number or the element of the number line. One of the most direct ways to show that infinity is not the same as any other number is by showing the counter-intuitive arithmetic properties it possesses.

The most celebrated example used among Mathematicians to visually show the counter-intuitive arithmetic properties is Hilbert's Hotel example. It is as follows:

- 1. Consider an infinitely large hotel, with infinitely many rooms. The rooms of the hotel are labeled by a Natural number i.e., $\{1, 2, 3, \dots\}$.
- 2. Now, if a new customer arrives and we want to allow a room (Considering all the rooms of the hotel with the countable label as occupied) to the new customer, what can we possibly do is to shift each person to their next neighboring room number, i.e. $(n \rightarrow n + 1)$. Thus, the room 1 which was originally occupied becomes available to the new customer. This brings us to the first counter-intuitive property of infinity as

$\infty + 1 = \infty$

3. The above process can be repeated as many times as possible to see that the property is counterintuitive. Now, consider bringing an infinite number of customers and making a room available for each new customer. As it is a hectic task to shift each member of the room infinitely many times, what we can do is to shift each member of the room k to room 2k. Now each oddlabeled room is empty and thus, there is a place for each new customer, which brings us to the next counter-intuitive property of infinity

 $\infty + \infty = \infty$

We can increase the complexity of the problem as we may like, and we see that the arithmetic properties are counter-intuitive, and it is not just like any regular element of the number line.

We can also think of infinity as the size of a set, i.e., a set with an infinite number of elements. Before going into the technicalities, we will define on the aspect of comparing the size of two sets. The answer to perform this is through the one-to-one correspondence relation. We say that two sets have the same size, if there is a one-to-one correspondence between two sets. For example, consider two sets A and B, the size of these sets are the same if and only if there is a one-toone correspondence from the elements of the first set to the elements of the second set and vice-versa. It is easy to say that the sets $A = \{a, b, c\}$ and $B = \{1, 2, 3\}$ have the same size.

Thus, the set of natural numbers $\{1, 2, 3, \dots\}$ is infinite because it has an infinite number of elements. Now, the natural question coming to our mind is "Can we make bigger infinities?"

The answer to this question is given by the German mathematician Georg Cantor. He proposed to consider an infinite list of numbers with an infinite number of elements after the decimal, arranged one below the other creating an $[\infty \times \infty]$ grid. Now select the diagonal elements of this grid, which has exactly infinite number of elements. Now, adding one to each number of the diagonal elements in the cyclic form $(0 \rightarrow 1, 1 \rightarrow 2, 2 \rightarrow 3, \dots, 9 \rightarrow 0)$. Thus, the new diagonal generated is a new number which was not on the previous list of infinite numbers. Now, adding the new number to the infinite list will generate a new infinite list that is bigger than the previous list. We can repeat this process as many times as possible and create larger infinities.

Now, coming to the question we started with, how can a list of integers have the same size as that of a list of a natural number?

To show that these two sets have the same length, we will use our definition of one-to-one correspondence. We can map each member of \mathbb{Z} to each member of \mathbb{N} uniquely as

$0 \rightarrow 0$

 $n \to m, \ \forall \ n \in \mathbb{Z}_+, \ m \in \{ \text{odd number in } \mathbb{N} \}$ $n \to k, \ \forall \ n \in \mathbb{Z}_-, \ k \in \{ \text{odd number in } \mathbb{N} \}$

Following this procedure, we can uniquely map each element of \mathbb{Z} to \mathbb{N} and vice-versa, proving that there are as many integers as there are natural numbers but the story does not end here. We can go so far as to say that there are as many rational numbers \mathbb{Q} as there are integers. It might make you very uncomfortable because you can say that let us take two consecutive integers, we can always show that every two integers encapsulate infinitely many rational numbers.

It turns out that showing that the size of the set of rationals and integers are the same is simple to understand. Consider a \mathbb{Z} by \mathbb{Z} grid, with (0,0) as the origin. Label each point on the grid with a natural number or an integer as we may like (it is already shown that there are as many integers as there are natural numbers). Every rational number $q \in \mathbb{Q}$ can be uniquely assigned to a point (i, j) on the grid whose slope is given by $\tan \theta = j/i$, and vice-versa.

Now, construction of infinity should seem very counter-intuitive because it has weird arithmetic's behind it, which can be made larger or smaller, and seemingly different-sized infinite sets have the same size. This brings us to the concept of *Cardinals*. Cardinals are used to describe the size of a set.

We will use a proof given by Cantor (we are going to take it as granted), which says that the power set $\mathcal{P}(X)$ of a (finite or infinite) set X is always larger than X itself.

The following statement may be hard to digest, "All infinite sets are greater than or equal to the natural numbers". The cardinality of natural numbers are lowest and is denoted by \aleph_0 . The set of naturals numbers is called an infinite set or more specifically *Countably infinite set*. The next cardinal number $\aleph_1 = 2^{\aleph_0}$, which is the cardinal number of the real numbers \mathbb{R} . Thus, using the proof by Cantor, the size of the set of real numbers is larger than the set of natural numbers. For every cardinal number \aleph_k , we have a next larger cardinal number $\aleph_{k+1} = 2^{\aleph_k}$, which again by the proof of Cantor is larger than the previous cardinal number.

All of this discussion about infinities can be done, but the main question that arises in a lot of minds, and that question is

"Does Infinity really exist?"

We can conclude our discussion about infinities with this open question to all. Of course, I would like to tell the answer to this question and say that it exists, but that brings us to a wider area of the *Philosophy of Mathematics*, which poses a slightly general question

"Anything that you can think of, Do they exist?"

VIBHOR SINGH

DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICS, SARDAR VALLABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GU-JARAT, INDIA-395007

E-MAIL ID: singhvibhor10@gmail.com

Applications of Matrices in Real Life

Nikunj K. Joshi

Introduction

In this article, various applications of matrices in real-life situations are discussed. Matrix analysis, modeling, and decision-making are critical activities in fields ranging from physics to genetics. The conversation will touch on several topics while emphasizing how matrices have shaped our knowledge and discoveries. As mathematical instruments, matrices are widely used in many facets of daily life. We would explores the real-world applications of matrices, highlighting their importance in a variety of industries, including business, gaming, medical, and many more.

Image Processing

Matrix graphics are the basis of both graphic design and game graphics. The color of every pixel in a digital image is represented by a matrix entry. Designers can deal with photos more effectively by applying effects like filtering, rotation, and scaling utilizing matrices. In games, matrix transformations translate 3D coordinates into 2D screen coordinates, producing visually spectacular results.

Gaming Adventures

In the gaming industry, matrices are essential for generating smooth 3D graphics. They handle changes of objects in 3D space, such as translating them to different locations, rotating them, or changing their size. The conversion from 3D to 2D is also carried out using matrices, ensuring realistic rendering on 2D monitors.

Business Secrets and Trends

Matrix visuals are a crucial component of 3D gaming graphics. They manage the control of objects in three-dimensional space, including translation, rotation, and sizing adjustments. Additionally, matrices are used for the 3D to 2D conversion, ensuring accurate representation on 2D monitors.

Building Cooler Structures

Architects employ matrices to design and modify structures according to their necessity. Architectural

elements can be efficiently experimented with by being represented as matrices. Architects make use of matrices to analyze the structural integrity of older structures and make well-informed remodeling decisions.

Exploring Human Body

Matrix analysis helps to provide crisp images of the human body in medical imaging. Reconstructing images from raw data is a necessary step in techniques like MRIs and CT scans, and matrices play an important role in this process. Through non-invasive methods, this aid medical professionals in seeing inside structures.

Weather Prediction

Matrix simulation is used in meteorological models to model the intricate interplay of atmospheric conditions in predicting weather according to the information available. Scientists can anticipate future weather patterns because these models illustrate the links between various weather variables.

Traffic Management

In transportation engineering, matrices are used in traffic flow analysis. Experts can optimize traffic signal timings, develop effective routes, and manage congestion by utilizing matrices to simulate road networks and traffic patterns. This results in a smoother flow of traffic.

Social Networking

Social network analysis in sociology and on internet platforms is made easier by matrices. Social network analysts can better comprehend social connections by identifying patterns, influencers, and information flow inside networks by visualizing links between persons as matrices.

Robotics

Matrix representations of kinematics and transformations are employed in robotics. This computes the relationships between joint movements and the resulting end-effector positions, enabling precise and accurate movement of robots. Robotic motion planning and control systems rely heavily on matrices.

Medicine

Pharmacokinetic modeling uses matrices to help researchers understand how medications travel through the body and alter their concentrations in various tissues over time. With this information, medications can be more effectively designed and their effects on the human body can be anticipated.

Semantics

Matrix analysis is used in natural language processing for tasks like sentiment analysis and language translation. By capturing the semantic relationships between words, word embeddings—represented as matrices—allow computers to comprehend and process language more effectively.

Cryptography

Multimatrices are used in cryptography and technology. They are a component of algorithms that guarantee the safe management of data, including financial transactions and passwords. The development of strong encryption methods which in turn, safeguard digital data is aided by matrices.

Smart Grids

Matrix analysis is used by smart grids to optimize the distribution of energy. By simulating and analyzing the intricate relationships found in energy networks, matrices contribute to more reliable electrical grids, efficient energy flow, and decreased waste.

Decoding in Genetics

Matrix analysis is a tool used in genetics to examine genetic sequences. Matrix analysis is a technique used by scientists to find structural components, correlations, and patterns in DNA sequences. Understanding genetic variants and illnesses need this knowledge to understand the genetic code.

Conclusion

Because of their many uses, matrices continue to influence human knowledge and progress across a wide range of industries, advancing research, technology, and daily living.

NIKUNJ K. JOSHI

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: nikunj.joshi67@gmail.com

Computational Intelligence and Mathematics

Dr. Jayesh M. Dhodiya

The study of computational intelligence is a new area of research which has gained popularity now-adays. It aims to investigate the possibility and ability of computers and other machines to think, reason, and performing tasks in a manner similar to humans. The purpose of this article is to examine, how this technology can be built with Mathematics.

Computational intelligence is a subfield of artificial intelligence focusing on developing algorithms and systems with Mathematics to process information and, learning from it, to make necessary decisions in response to acquired knowledge. Numerous current technologies, including artificial intelligence, machine learning, data mining, and Nature inspired algorithms, are built upon by the notion of computational intelligence. By merging these disciplines, we can create solutions which are both computational quite faster and precise than earlier. Furthermore, because of its adaptability, it may be used in a variety of sectors, including healthcare and banking.

Figure 9.1: Computational Intelligence through Mathematics [1]

The goal of the discipline of computational intelligence is to comprehend, account for, and forecast intelligent behaviour. It uses the fundamentals of statistics, engineering, mathematics, and computer science to build artificial systems which are capable of handling challenging issues. Numerous techniques are covered by this field, such as Fuzzy theory and Fuzzy logic, Evolutionary algorithms, Nature inspired algorithms, Neural Networks, Uncertainty Theory, etc. By using heuristics rather than conventional algorithms, soft computing techniques like fuzzy logic will enable the construction of systems with capabilities akin to those seen in biological nerve systems. Artificial Neural Networks are used for pattern recognition and classification tasks; they are modelled after the structure of human brains. They are extensively employed in many different domains, including robotics, natural language processing, and image processing.

Evolutionary computation, on the other hand, is concerned with finding solutions over generations using search-based optimization techniques. These methods are able to produce new solutions from pre-existing ones through the processes of mutation and selection. Apart from these methods, research is also being conducted on integrating them to create an intelligent system or agent which can make decisions on its own without outside supervision or direction. The ultimate goal of all this work is to build machines having human-like intelligence and are faster and more precise than ever before.



Figure 9.2: Artificial Intelligence through Mathematics [1]

The goal of the quickly developing computer science discipline of computational intelligence is to provide methods and algorithms in a way for machines to tackle complicated tasks and, without mathematical techniques it is impossible. To extract meaningful information from data, neural networks, fuzzy systems, swarm intelligence, and probabilistic techniques are used. The primary objectives of computational intelligence are to develop solutions that can autonomously modify their behaviour in response to changing surroundings and models which can effectively reflect and forecast real-world phenomena. Computational intelligence finds its main uses in robotics, image processing, natural language processing, autonomous navigation, fault detection, and medical diagnostics. These methods have made it possible for machines to simulate human behaviour more accurately than in the past. More applications in fields like gaming, optimization issues, and biometric authentication will surface as computational intelligence research improves. Furthermore, this technology might be used in a variety of sectors, such as banking and healthcare, where automation is becoming more and more crucial.

Within the discipline of computational intelligence, which is concerned with the creation and implementation of problem-solving strategies, computational thinking plays a significant role. It entails disassembling complicated issues into simpler parts and employing those parts in creating answers. The four primary categories of computational thinking are natural selection, problem solving, sensitivity analysis, and degree of membership. Recent years have seen a sharp rise in interest in the field of computational intelligence. It entails using machine learning and artificial intelligence tools to solve challenging issues. The invention of algorithms and systems with the ability to recognize patterns, anticipate outcomes with accuracy, and make data-driven judgments are the major aims of computational intelligence.

Algorithm design, pattern recognition, decomposition, and abstraction are the four categories of computational thinking. While pattern recognition finds patterns in a dataset or environment, decomposition divides larger jobs into smaller subtasks. While algorithm design establishes rules to tackle specific problems, abstraction makes it possible to find important traits from a larger range of information. Though each type has a specific use and needs to be approached differently, they are all useful in solving difficult problems.

In summary, computational intelligence plays a significant role by using mathematical techniques for building intelligent machines, efficiently using the resources at hand to accomplish desired goals. It provides insight into how we could easily tackle problems more accurately, efficiently, and effectively, allowing us to produce more effective solutions for our daily concerns through the use of cutting-edge technology.

References

- [1] Mike MacKenzie image via www.vpnsrus. com. https://www.flickr.com/photos/ mikemacmarketing/30212411048. Accessed: 2024-03-10.
- [2] A. P. Engelbrecht. Computational intelligence: an introduction. John Wiley & Sons, 2007.

DR. JAYESH M. DHODIYA ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR AND HEAD DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: jmd@amhd.svnit.ac.in

Mathematics in Business Management

Ayushi Singh

Business is running the world, and mathematics is the key to make everything possible. Mathematics is not just about numbers; it is the power which helps us make intelligent decisions, plan the future, and help things run smoothly. Previously, people used to do business in exchange for their respective goods and services, and gradually, numbers came onto the scene, and it became the most crucial part as currency evolved and played important part. If we fast forward to the present day, we can see that mathematics has become the backbone of business management.

Maddneni Sudhakar and Talluri Sreekrishna, in their paper [5] explain how businesses utilize mathematical concepts to regulate their operational functions. Within commercial enterprises, mathematics finds application in tasks such as accounting, inventory control, marketing, predicting sales, and conducting financial assessments. Further, understanding financial formulas, fractions, interest calculations, salary determinations, and taxes are crucial for efficiently managing business tasks.

It also involves statistical analysis, offering solutions to various business challenges. Success in business, demands more than just creating a product or offering a service. It depends on skillfully managing finances and making necessary provisions for growth. Proficiency in business mathematics is crucial for sustaining profits and maintaining precise records, starting from setting prices for products and services to evaluating whether budgets were adhered to by the end.

Apart from this, there is a vast unknown area which is ready for discovery. In her paper [1] Assunta Di Vaio et al. explore the body of literature concerning the involvement of Artificial Intelligence (AI) in shaping sustainable business models (SBMs). Imagine combining mathematics with brilliant AI or introducing innovative concepts to ensure businesses are not just profitable but also beneficial for the environment and society. The future is an adventurous journey where mathematics is not solely about financial calculations; it is about utilizing numbers to construct a world where businesses prosper while doing good for the planet and people.

In this article, we will see different mathematical approaches used by businesses to tackle various business problems, they have been facing, beginning from the essential tools that are used in calculations to ad-

vanced mathematical concepts and, we will end by discussing the latest technology of Artificial Intelligence and leveraging it for business purposes.

Calculating Costs: Foundation for Business Viability

Businesses use mathematics for calculations of basic things like cost of production, price evaluation, profit calculation, and analyzing the financial health of the company. Before starting a new business and its production, it is important to calculate the costs involved. It includes the raw materials, rent of the place, machinery, and administrative costs. It also includes other costs like marketing and loan interest. By calculating these costs accurately and keeping a record of it, it becomes easier to predict the profit. Therefore, clearly understanding expenses is the foundation of any business.

The production cost is the total of the expenses which business faces during the production of product and in delivering it. It includes the raw material cost, labor cost, and general overhead costs.

$$\frac{\text{Production Cost}}{\text{Formula}} = \begin{pmatrix} \text{Direct Labor } + \\ \text{Direct Material } + \\ \text{Overhead Costs} \\ \text{on Manufacturing} \end{pmatrix}$$

Once the costs have been figured, the next move is setting the prices in a way to generates optimal cash flow in order to meet market demands. Setting the right selling price is crucial for staying competitive. Mathematics plays a significant role in determining the best price for your product or service. It is essential to consider all costs, depreciation, and other financial responsibilities before finalizing the pricing strategy for your company's offerings.

Mathematics plays an important role in determining profits within your business, involving calculating net income by subtracting operational expenses from gross sales or revenue across a specific period. Items like VAT, interest, and insurance costs are typically excluded from this calculation. This assessment helps gauge if the products are priced adequately to sustain business operations and facilitate growth. In order to get a grip on the financial well-being of business, you will need to predict both the money coming in and going out in the future. When you tweak these numbers to show more or less sales down the road, it affects how your books look. This analysis helps figure out each employee's role in the business and how changes might shake things up.

Using business mathematics is the key in making sense of all this and taking your business to the next level.

Business Analytics and Value Creation

Analytics in business refers to the systematic use of data, statistical analysis, and mathematical models to uncover meaningful insights, trends, and patterns. It empowers organizations to make informed decisions, optimize processes, and gain a competitive edge. By harnessing various analytics tools and techniques, businesses can delve into vast amounts of data collected from diverse sources, such as customer interactions, sales figures, market trends, and operational metrics. These insights aid in understanding customer behavior, improving operational efficiency, identifying growth opportunities, and mitigating risks. Analytics enables businesses to forecast future trends, fine-tune strategies, and tailor offerings to meet evolving market demands. Integrating into business operations enhances agility and responsiveness, fostering a datadriven culture that drives innovation and sustainable growth.

Suryanarayanan Krishnamoorthi and Saji K. Mathew in their paper [2] highlight that as businesses increasingly embrace business analytics, it is crucial for these investing firms to understand how their investments translate into creating business value. Research in the realm of information technology has emphasized in simply pouring more money into technology does not necessarily guarantee higher returns. Instead, the role of IT as an organizational capability should emerge as a crucial factor in mediating the process of value creation.

Business analytics (BA) is recognized as a key player in the business landscape, yet there is a noticeable gap in understanding how investments in BA translate into tangible business value (BV). When companies in the same field invest similarly in analytics resources, the differing impact of these investments remains a puzzle. In today's competitive economy, businesses are focusing on their strengths, tapping into unique knowledge embedded in their processes, technology, and partnerships to drive BV.

The value of Information Technology (IT) has been a focal point in research within information systems due to its substantial budget allocation and strategic importance. Research in IT's business value

investigates its impact on organizational performance, revealing its positive contributions. Studies have pointed out various factors influencing business value, including the type of IT, management practices, and organizational structure. However, the unique nature of business analytics within information systems calls for distinct attention concerning its implementation and usage strategies, demanding a separate exploration of its contribution to business value [2].

and The Evolution of Fuzzy Theory: Its Role in Business and Finance

Fuzzy theory in business management is a smart way to deal with not-so-clear information. It is flexible and handles the confusion arising while making decisions. Instead of just right or wrong, it understands things in degrees of truth. This will help managers to make smarter choices by adapting to different situations. It is great for dealing with complicated and uncertain situations, letting us understand them better. Basically, fuzzy theory helps managers be more flexible in making decisions, especially when simple yes-or-no logic does not quite fit the complex realworld situations.

In his paper [4], Marc Sanchez-Roger et al. explain how the successful use of fuzzy logic in remote control paved the way for its use in various fields, including finance. It has been successfully applied in finance due to its capability to handle uncertain, partial, and unclear information. Fuzzy logic has been great in finance, handling uncertain data well. It is been useful in banking, especially for managing risk and credit scores, but strangely absent in banking crises. It is crucial for experts in trying different methods to prevent major financial crisis (e.g., preventing bank meltdowns which are using public money), and given business mathematics' knack dealing with complex and uncertain situations will give an advantage to experts in analyzing the situation. Bringing fuzzy logic into studying banking crises could be a big move in making it easier to handle these crises and find better solutions that match the complicated nature of finance.

AI Reshaping Business, Economy, and Society

Sandra Maria Correia Loureiro et al. in the paper [3] states that "Artificial intelligence (AI) is reshaping business, economy, and society by transforming experiences and relationships amongst stakeholders and citizens." Businesses are integrating AI technologies to streamline operations, enhance customer experiences, and drive innovation. Machine learning algorithms are empowering companies to analyze vast datasets swiftly, extracting valuable insights for informed decision-making. AI-powered chatbots and virtual assistants cater to customer queries promptly, improving engagement and service quality.

Moreover, predictive analytic models aid in forecasting market trends, optimizing inventory management, and personalizing marketing strategies. AI's adaptive nature enables it to continually learn and adapt, making it indispensable in automating routine tasks, increasing operational efficiency, and paving new paths for future advancements. Its' integration in business strategies not only augments productivity but also catalyzes novel opportunities for growth and competitiveness in an ever-evolving market landscape.

In the paper [1] Assunta Di Vaio et al. showcased AI's role in shaping Sustainable Business Models (SBMs), emphasizing its nascent nature in research. It reveals gaps in the literature, particularly in linking AI and sustainable development, notably overlooking the UN 2030 Agenda's guidelines. The integration of AI into decision-making processes, aligned with human aspects through Knowledge Management Systems (KMS), emerges to be crucial for fostering SBMs. The governance of AI's disruptive evolution necessitates in organic cultural shift and organizational strategies are to prevent potential societal harm.

There is a global call for responsible AI applications, demanding regulatory interventions to harness digital benefits while averting pitfalls. Scholars, institutions, and policymakers must collaborate to drive sustainable advancements through AI, emphasizing public awareness, ethical principles, and community engagement for successful transformations.

Conclusion

Mathematics has played a crucial role in the evolution of business, from its basic applications in financial calculations and cost analysis to its more advanced applications in fuzzy theory, business analytics, and artificial intelligence. Businesses have increasingly recognized the power of mathematics to drive informed decision-making, optimizing operations, and gain a competitive edge.

Fuzzy theory, with its ability to handle imprecise and uncertain information, has proven valuable in

managing risk and credit scores in the financial sector. Business analytics, through the systematic use of data and mathematical models, has enabled businesses to uncover meaningful insights, predict future trends, and tailor offerings to meet evolving market demands. Artificial intelligence, with its ability to learn and adapt, is transforming business operations, enhancing customer experiences, and driving innovation.

As businesses continue to embrace mathematical tools and techniques, they will unlock new opportunities for growth and success. The future of the industry is undoubtedly intertwined with mathematics, as it provides the foundation for understanding complex problems, making informed decisions, and shaping a sustainable and prosperous future.

References

- A. Di Vaio, R. Palladino, R. Hassan, and O. Escobar. Artificial intelligence and business models in the sustainable development goals perspective: A systematic literature review. *Journal of Business Research*, 121:283–314, 2020.
- [2] S. Krishnamoorthi and S. K. Mathew. Business analytics and business value: A comparative case study. *Information & Management*, 55(5):643–666, 2018.
- [3] S. M. C. Loureiro, J. Guerreiro, and I. Tussyadiah. Artificial intelligence in business: State of the art and future research agenda. *Journal of business* research, 129:911–926, 2021.
- [4] M. Sanchez-Roger, M. D. Oliver-Alfonso, and C. Sanchís-Pedregosa. Fuzzy logic and its uses in finance: a systematic review exploring its potential to deal with banking crises. *Mathematics*, 7(11):1091, 2019.
- [5] M. Sudhakar and T. Sreekrishna. Business mathematics: A contemporary issues of managing business operations and business deals in the world economy. *Parishodh Journal*, 9(3):8384–8387, 2020.

Ayushi Singh

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: ayushis00021@gmail.com

ARIMA Models for Time Series Forecasting

BONU SAI VENKATA DEEPAK NAIDU

Time series data refers to a continuous stream of observations that are recorded at regular intervals. This data is immensely valuable as it helps identify hidden patterns and forecast future trends. To extract insights from time series data, a rigorous statistical framework is essential. This is where ARIMA (Autoregressive Integrated Moving Average) models come into play. These models are the cornerstone of time series forecasting and offer unparalleled accuracy when used.

Understanding the ARIMA Method: A Mathematical Journey

ARIMA models combine three fundamental components, each represented by mathematical equations, to capture the dynamics of time series data:

1. Autoregressive (AR) Component: This part measures the impact of previous observations y(t-i) on the value of y(t) at this moment. In simple terms, it is a linear regression model on the time series' past delays. This is how it is represented mathematically:

$$y(t) = \alpha_0 + \sum_{i=1}^p \phi_i y(t-i) + \epsilon(t)$$

where:

- α_0 is the intercept term,
- ϕ_i are the autoregressive coefficients, representing the impact of the i th lag on the current value. The number of lags considered is denoted by p (model order),
- and, ε(t) is the white noise error term, capturing the random component not explained by the past lags.
- 2. Integrated (I) Component: Real-world time series data frequently show seasonality or patterns. This part takes care of it by achieving stationarity—a critical assumption for ARIMA models—by differencing the data d times. The term "stationarity" refers to the constancy of the statistical features (mean and variance) of the data throughout time. Subtracting a prior value from the present value (y(t) - y(t-1)) is the process of differencing. The letter d stands for the necessary degree of differencing.

3. This part basically accounts for the unpredictability present in the data by including the impact of previous forecast mistakes $(\epsilon(t-i))$ on the current value. Mathematically represented as:

$$y(t) = \mu + \sum_{i=1}^{q} \theta_i \epsilon(t-i) + \epsilon(t)$$

where:

- μ represents the mean of the stationary series,
- θ_i are the moving average coefficients, indicating the weight given to the i th past forecast error.

The number of past errors considered is denoted by q (model order).

The effectiveness of ARIMA in Practice

- 1. Forecasting Stock Prices $[(\mathbf{p},\mathbf{q},\mathbf{d})=(\mathbf{1},\mathbf{1},\mathbf{1})]$: Future trends can be predicted by analyzing previous closing prices using an ARIMA (1,1,1) model. For example, if the lagged closing price has a coefficient of 0.8 ($\phi_1 = 0.8$) according to the model, it means that the closing price from one day ago has a positive impact (weight of 0.8) on the closing price today.
- 2. Predicting Interest Rates $[(\mathbf{p},\mathbf{d},\mathbf{q})=(2,1,2)]$: Future interest rates may be predicted using an ARIMA (2,1,2) model by averaging the previous two prediction errors (θ_1 and θ_2) and taking into account the influence of the previous two interest rates (ϕ_1 and ϕ_2).
- 3. Understanding Exchange Rates $[(\mathbf{p},\mathbf{d},\mathbf{q})=(3,0,1)]$: An ARIMA (3,0,1) model, where differencing might not be necessary due to the absence of trends, can analyze past exchange rates (ϕ_1 to ϕ_3) to predict future fluctuations, considering the most recent forecast error (θ_1).

Beyond Finance: A Broader Impact with Diverse Applications

ARIMA models are not limited to the financial domain. Here are a few fascinating examples from various industries:

1. Sales Forecasting [(p,d,q)=(2,1,1)]:

Using previous patterns and seasonal changes, businesses may forecast future sales by utilizing ARIMA (2,1,1) models. For instance, a clothes store may employ a model that includes the most recent sales forecast inaccuracy (θ_1) together with the influence of previous sales during particular seasons (ϕ_1 and ϕ_2).

2. Demand Forecasting [(p,d,q)=(1,1,2)]:

To forecast future demand for different items, one can use an ARIMA (1,1,2) model. The model here takes into account the impact of the previous demand period (ϕ_1) and averages the errors from the two most recent projections (θ_1 and θ_2). This method assists in accounting for demand variations that a more basic model would miss.

3. Web Traffic Analysis [(p,d,q)=(2,1,0)]:

Websites can utilize ARIMA (2,1,0) models to forecast future website traffic. The model considers the impact of past traffic patterns (ϕ_1 and ϕ_2) and assumes no significant influence of past forecast errors (q = 0) as website traffic might exhibit less inherent randomness compared to financial data.

For precise forecasting, choosing the best ARIMA model (p, d, q) is important. This is the situation in which statistical methods such as the Bayesian Information Criterion (BIC) and the Akaike Information Criterion (AIC) are useful. These measures reward a good match to the data and penalize models with more parameters and growing complexity. The model which has the lowest AIC or BIC value is the most appropriate which is a piece of common knowledge.

Conclusion

With the help of ARIMA models, we have a strong statistical framework to handle the complexity of time series data. They enable us to dissect the impact of historical values, patterns, and chance in order to make well-informed judgments across a range of contexts. ARIMA models are a monument to the ability of statistical analysis to anticipate the future with astonishing precision, from the complex world of banking to the ever-changing environment of e-commerce.

Although ARIMA models provide a strong foundation for time series forecasting, machine learning breakthroughs are opening the door to ever more advanced methods. However, because of its interpretability and capacity to manage a broad variety of time series data, ARIMA models continue to be a useful tool. The future of data science is probably going to take a synergistic approach, combining machine learning algorithms and ARIMA models to extract even more insights from time series data.

.....

BONU SAI VENKATA DEEPAK NAIDU DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: bsvdnaidu952@gmail.com

The Power of Queueing Theory in Everyday Life

NIDHI

In our day-to-day lives, queues or waiting lines are a common sight, whether we are at the grocery store, stuck in traffic, or awaiting assistance over the phone. Waiting is an inevitable part of our routines, intricately linked with the fascinating realm of "Queueing Theory". Queueing theory, a branch of mathematics, delves into the intricacies of waiting lines, offering insights into how queues form, evolve, and can be managed efficiently. It provides a framework for analyzing and optimizing the performance of systems where entities, such as customers or tasks, arrive at a service facility, wait in queue if necessary, and are served by one or more servers. From supermarkets to call centers to manufacturing processes, queueing systems are ubiquitous in our daily lives, playing a crucial role in various industries. At its core, queueing theory seeks to address the following fundamental questions about the behavior of queues:

- How long will customers wait in queue before being served?
- What is the average waiting time in the system?
- How many servers are needed to meet a certain service level?
- What is the optimal arrangement of servers to minimize waiting times and maximize efficiency?

To answer these questions, we need to initially understand the mathematical models framed for it. Queueing theory employs mathematical models capturing system dynamics like arrival rates, service rates, queue capacities, and the number of servers. These models enable researchers and practitioners to analyze queueing system performance under different scenarios and make informed decisions to enhance efficiency and customer satisfaction. It is important to note that queueing theory does not just deal with physical queues; it extends to any system where entities wait for service, whether customers at a bank, packets of data in a network, or processes in a computer. The principles of queueing theory remain applicable, offering invaluable insights into system dynamics and performance optimization. To unravel the mysteries of queues, queueing theory introduces several key concepts:

• Arrival process: Entities arrive at the queue according to a certain pattern or distribution, such as randomly or at regular intervals. Understanding the arrival process helps to predict the queue behavior and manage the system capacity.

- Service time distribution: The time it takes to serve an entity can vary, often following a probability distribution. By analyzing service times, queueing theory helps to estimate the waiting times and the system performance.
- Service discipline: How entities are served from the queue can significantly impact performance? Common service disciplines include first-in-firstout (FIFO), where the first entity to arrive is the first to be served, and priority-based schemes, where certain entities are given precedence.
- Queue capacity: Queues have finite or no limits to the number of entities they can accommodate. Effective management of queue capacity is essential for maintaining optimal service levels and preventing congestion, ensuring smooth operations.

In essence, queueing theory stands as a crucial framework for comprehending waiting queues in our daily experiences. Its' principles, covering arrival patterns, service methods, and queue limits, provide deep insights into system dynamics and effectiveness. By leveraging mathematical models and analytical techniques, we can address queue challenges with clarity and intention, thereby enriching both personal experiences and global business operations. With queueing theory as our guide, we gain the ability to optimize resource allocation, minimize waiting times, and elevate service quality across various domains. This approach enables us to navigate the complexities of queues with greater efficiency, responsiveness, and excellence in meeting the demands of a dynamic and interconnected world.

NIDHI

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS, SARDAR VAL-LABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, SURAT, GUJARAT, INDIA-395007 E-MAIL ID: nidhituteja03@gmail.com

Editorial Team

Faculty



Dr. Jayesh M. Dhodiya



Dr. Indira P. Tripathi



Dr. Raj Kamal Maurya



Dr. Saroj R. Yadav



Sai Charan Gannamaneni



Vaghasiya Jansi Sureshbhai



Students

Panchal Vidhi Vimalkumar



Pittaliya Bhavya Rakeshkumar







Mahesh Rajarapu



Venkata Subbaiah



Yerrapati



Ramesh Vankudothu



Ekata Jain



Theophilus Gera



"WHAT IS MATHEMATICS? IT IS ONLY A SYSTEMATIC EFFORT OF SOLVING PUZZLES POSED BY NATURE."

— Shakuntala Devi



DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS

SARDAR VALLABHBHAI NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY Surat-7, Gujarat, India

Ph. No: +91 261 2201542

Email Id: hod@amhd.svnit.ac.in https://www.svnit.ac.in/web/department/maths/index.php